
PUBLIC SAFETY and JUDICIARY COMMITTEE  
AGENDA 

 
Called by: Brad Lindmark, Chairman DATE: WEDNESDAY, JULY 17, 2024 
Members:  Aaron Booker, Jean TIME: 5:30 PM 
Crosby, Tim Nabors, Angie Goral, 
Kevin McCarthy, Chris Scrol 

LOCATION:   ROOM 303 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BLDG 
404 ELM STREET 
ROCKFORD, IL 61101 

 
AGENDA:  
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Roll Call  

C. Approval of June 12, 2024 Minutes 

D. Public Comment – This is the time we invite the public to address the Public Safety and 
Judiciary Committee with issues and concerns.  We ask you to limit your comments to 
three minutes.  Personal attacks or inappropriate language of any sort will not be tolerated.  
We will allow a maximum of five speakers on a first come basis with sign up at the 
meeting.  Speakers may not address zoning matters which are pending before the ZBA, 
the Zoning Committee or the County Board.  Personnel matters or pending or threatened 
litigation may not be addressed in open session.  An individual may speak a maximum of 
three times per calendar year on the same topic.  This prohibition shall include the 
repetition of the same topic in a statement on what is purported to be a different topic.  
After acknowledgement by the chair, please stand and state your name.  Thank you. 

E. Debbie Jarvis, Director of Court Services – Resource Intervention Center Evening 
Programming:  Discussion 

F. Resolution Authorizing the Winnebago County Board Chairman to Execute the First 
Amendment to Tower Site License Agreement 

G. Resolution Accepting Award and Authorizing the Winnebago County Board Chairman to 
Execute FY24 Law Enforcement Camera Grant – Fall Agreement 

H. Future Agenda Items 

I. Adjournment  



Page 1 

Winnebago County Board 
Public Safety and Judiciary Committee Meeting 

County Administration Building 
404 Elm Street, Room 510 

Rockford, IL 61101 

Wednesday, June 12, 2024 
5:30 PM 

Present: Others Present: 
Aaron Booker, Vice Chairperson 
Jean Crosby 
Kevin McCarthy 
Tim Nabors 
Chris Scrol 

Absent: 
Angie Goral 
Brad Lindmark, Chairperson 

Marlana Dokken, Director, Chairman’s Office of 
Criminal Justice Initiatives 
Josh Gesner, WCSO 
Kurt Whisenand, WCSO 

AGENDA: 
A. Call to Order
B. Roll Call
C. Approval of May 15, 2024 Minutes
D. Public Comment – This is the time we invite the public to address the Public Safety

and Judiciary Committee with issues and concerns.  We ask you to limit your
comments to three minutes.  Personal attacks or inappropriate language of any sort
will not be tolerated.  We will allow a maximum of five speakers on a first come basis
with sign up at the meeting.  Speakers may not address zoning matters which are
pending before the ZBA, the Zoning Committee or the County Board.  Personnel
matters or pending or threatened litigation may not be addressed in open session.  An
individual may speak a maximum of three times per calendar year on the same topic.
This prohibition shall include the repetition of the same topic in a statement on what
is purported to be a different topic.  After acknowledgement by the chair, please stand
and state your name.  Thank you.

E . Resolution Authorizing the Chairman of the County Board to Execute an 
Intergovernmental Agreement with the Rockton Fire Protection District for Fire and 
EMS Dispatch Services 

F. Resolution Authorizing the Chairman of the County Board to Execute an Agreement
with the Village of Machesney Park for Police Services

G. ATV’s and Other Non-Highway Vehicles in Roadway – Discussion
H. Future Agenda Items
I. Adjournment

Call to Order 
Vice Chairperson Booker called the meeting to order at 5:30 PM. 

Roll Call 
Vice Chairperson Booker yes, Ms. Crosby yes, Mr. Scrol yes, Mr. Nabors yes, Mr. McCarthy 
yes. 



Page 2 

Approval of May 15, 2024 Minutes 
Vice Chairperson Booker called for a motion to approve the minutes of May 15, 2024. 
Motion: Mr. Nabors.  Second: Ms. Crosby. 
Motion passed by unanimous voice vote.  

Public Comment 
Vice Chairperson Booker omitted reading the Public Comment Section of the Agenda due to 
no one present to speak. 

Resolution Authorizing the Chairman of the County Board to Execute an 
Intergovernmental Agreement with the Rockton Fire Protection District for Fire and 
EMS Dispatch Services 
Vice Chairperson Booker called for a motion to approve the Resolution. 
Motion: Ms. Crosby.  Second: Mr. Nabors. 

• Discussion followed.
Motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 

Resolution Authorizing the Chairman of the County Board to Execute an Agreement 
with the Village of Machesney Park for Police Services 
Vice Chairperson Booker called for a motion to approve the Resolution. 
Motion: Mr. McCarthy.  Second: Mr. Scrol. 

• Discussion followed.
Motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 

ATV’s and Other Non-Highway Vehicles in Roadway – Discussion 
• Discussion followed.

Future Agenda Items 
None reported. 

Adjournment 
Vice Chairperson Booker called for a motion to adjourn. 
Motion: Mr. Scrol.  Second: Ms. Crosby. 
Motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Nancy Bleile 
Executive Assistant 



Resolution Executive Summary 
Prepared By:    Sean Hughes 

Committee:    Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 

Committee Date:    07/17/2024 

Resolution Title: RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD 
  CHAIRMAN TO EXECUTE THE FIRST AMENDMENT TO TOWER SITE 
  LICENSE AGREEMENT 

County Code:  N/A 

Board Meeting Date:   07/25/2024 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted? Yes    Amount:   $10,063 year 

If not, explain funding source 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code      Budget Impact:  N/A 

Background Information:  The Winnebago County Sheriff’s Officeentered into a 10-year lease in 2014 
with Tarpon Towers II, LLC, successor-in-interest to Evangelical Christian Credit Union for the use and 
storage of radio equipment and operational needs for the emergency warning siren system. The lease 
expires on July 31, 2024. The parties desire to amend the agreement and the proposed amendment 
term will begin August 1, 2024.    

Recommendation:   Approve lease amendment 

Contract/Agreement: Five years beginning August 1, 2024 with option to renew every 5 years for 3 
additional terms.  

Legal Review:  The Winnebago County State’s Attorney’s Office has reviewed the agreement  

Follow-Up:   The Winnebago County Sheriff’s Department will proceed with agreement(s) executions. 



County Board:  July 25, 2024 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Sponsored by:  Brad Lindmark, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 

 
2024 CR 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD CHAIRMAN TO 
EXECUTE THE FIRST AMENDMENT TO TOWER SITE LICENSE AGREEMENT 

 
 WHEREAS, on October 21, 2014, the County of Winnebago, Illinois (“Licensee”), on behalf 
of the Winnebago County Sheriff’s Office and Tarpon Towers II, LLC, successor-in-interest to 
Evangelical Christian Credit Union (“Licensor”) entered into a Tower Site License Agreement (the 
“Agreement”) for an initial five (5) year term, subject to one (1) additional five (5) year term; and  
  
 WHEREAS, pursuant to said Agreement, Licensor leases to Licensee a portion of a certain 
Site, therein described, with the right to install and operate certain communication equipment 
thereon, on a portion of Licensor’s communications facility tower site located at 7241 Clikeman 
Road, Rockford, Winnebago County, Illinois, all as more particularly described in the Agreement; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Agreement is scheduled to expire on July 31, 2024, and the parties desire 
to provide Licensee with additional renewal terms to extend the Agreement; and 
  
 WHEREAS, the Public Safety and Judiciary Committee of the County Board for the County 
of Winnebago, Illinois, has reviewed the proposed terms of the First Amendment to the 
Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit A, and recommends executing the First Amendment 
under the terms set forth in the First Amendment; and        
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois, that the Winnebago County Board Chairman is authorized to execute the First 
Amendment to Tower Site License Agreement with Tarpon Towers II, LLC, in substantially the 
same form as contained in Exhibit A; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby directed to 
prepare and deliver copies of this Resolution to the Winnebago County Auditor, Winnebago 
County Finance Director, and the Winnebago County Sheriff. 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 
                                                                             Respectfully Submitted, 

                PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 
 

 
AGREE  DISAGREE 

 

 

  

BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIR  BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIR 

 

AARON BOOKER  AARON BOOKER 

 

JEAN CROSBY 

 

 JEAN CROSBY 

 

ANGIE GORAL 

 

 ANGIE GORAL 

 

KEVIN MCCARTHY 

 

 KEVIN MCCARTHY 

 

TIM NABORS 

 

 TIM NABORS 

 

CHRIS SCROL  CHRIS SCROL 

 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2024. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 

 



Licensor Site: IL1005 Rockford 
Licensee Site:  
 

1. 
 

 
FIRST AMENDMENT TO TOWER SITE LICENSE AGREEMENT 

 

This First Amendment to Tower Site License Agreement (“First Amendment”) dated as of the latter 
of the signature dates, below, is by and between Tarpon Towers II, LLC, a Delaware limited liability 
company, with offices at 8916 77th Terrace East, Suite 103, Lakewood Ranch, FL 34202, successor-in-
interest to Evangelical Christian Credit Union (“Licensor”) and the County of Winnebago, Illinois, a body 
politic and corporate, on behalf of the Winnebago County Sheriff’s Office, with offices at 650 West State 
St, Rockford, IL 61101 (“Licensee”). 

 
WHEREAS, Licensor and Licensee are parties to that certain Tower Site License Agreement dated 

October 21, 2014 (the “Agreement”) whereby Licensor leases to Licensee a portion of a certain Site, therein 
described, with the right to install and operate certain communication equipment thereon, on a portion of 
Licensor’s communications facility tower site located at 7241 Clikeman Road, Rockford, Winnebago 
County, Illinois, all as more particularly described in the Agreement; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Agreement is scheduled to expire on July 31, 2024, and the parties desire to 

provide Licensee with additional renewal terms to extend the Agreement. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, and such other 
good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, Licensor 
and Licensee agree as follows: 

 
1. Paragraph 1, Licensee shall be modified to read as follows:  
 

The County of Winnebago, Illinois, a body politic and corporate, on behalf of the 
Winnebago County Sheriff’s Office. 

 
2. Section 3- “Term”, shall be deleted and replaced with the following:  
 

 This Agreement shall be effective as of the date it is fully executed by both parties and  
 shall terminate on July 31, 2029.  

 
3. Section 4- “Renewal Terms”, shall be deleted and replaced with the following:  
 

 Licensee is hereby granted three (3) additional terms of five (5) years each on the same  
 terms and conditions as found in the Agreement, except as might otherwise be provided  
 herein.  Each renewal term shall automatically take effect unless Licensee notifies 
 Licensor of its intent not to renew the Agreement no less than ninety (90) days prior to  
 the expiration of the immediately following term. 

 
 In consideration of the additional renewal terms provided for, above, Licensee’s rent shall  
 increase each year of each new renewal term by four percent (4%) over the rent in effect 
 the immediately preceding year, with the first such increase occurring August 1, 2024 
 and on each subsequent August 1 thereafter. 
 
 
 



Licensor Site: IL1005 Rockford 
Licensee Site:  
 

2. 
 

                4. Section 6- “Rent”, shall be deleted and replaced with the following: 
 

 Rent shall be payable, in advance, on or before the first day of each month at Dept 720047, 
 P.O. Box 1335, Charlotte, NC 28201-1335, or such other address as Licensor may from  
 time to time designate in writing to Licensee. For Licensee’s right to place and operate its  
 Tower Equipment on the Site Tower and in the Site Building, Licensee shall pay Licensor  
 monthly rent as provided in Section 4 above. From August 1, 2024 through July  
 31, 2025, the rent shall be $838.60 and increased annually as provided herein. 

 
5.   Except as modified herein, the Agreement remains in full force and affect. All capitalized  

 words and phrases not herein defined shall carry the same definition as required by the  
 Agreement. In the event of a discrepancy or contradiction between the terms of the  
 Agreement and this First Amendment, the terms of this First Amendment shall govern  
 and control. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Remainder of Page Intentionally Blank 
Signature Page to Follow 



Licensor Site: IL1005 Rockford 
Licensee Site:  
 

3. 
 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Licensor and Licensee have executed this First Amendment as of 

the latter of the signature dates, below, intending to be legally bound thereby. 
 
LICENSOR: LICENSEE: 
Tarpon Towers II, LLC County of Winnebago, Illinois  
a Delaware limited liability company a body politic and corporate 

 
 
By:    By:   __ 
Print: Brett Buggeln Print: Joseph V. Chiarelli_____________ 
Title: COO Title: Chairman of the County Board____ 
   of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
Date:    Date:  ____________________________ 

 
 
       ATTEST: 
 
       By: _____________________________ 
       Print:  Lori Gummow_________________ 
       Title:  Clerk of the County Board of the__ 
        County of Winnebago, Illinois____ 
       Date:  ____________________________ 
 

 
Winnebago County Sheriff’s Office  
 
By: __________________________ 
Print:    Gary Caruana_______________ 
Title: Winnebago County Sheriff_____ 
Date: ___________________________  

























    Resolution Executive Summary 

Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives | 404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.gov 
Phone: (815) 319- 4059 | Email: mdokken@admin.wincoil.gov    

Prepared By:   Marlana Dokken 

Committee:   Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 

Committee Date:   July 17, 2024 

Board Meeting Date:      July 25, 2024 

Resolution Title:        RESOLUTION ACCEPTING AWARD AND AUTHORIZING THE WINNEBAGO 
COUNTY BOARD CHAIRMAN TO EXECUTE FY24 LAW ENFORCEMENT 
CAMERA GRANT – FALL AGREEMENT 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?       No  Appropriation Amount: $432,623.00  

If not, explain funding source: State of Illinois, Illinois Law Enforcement Training and Standards Board 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:        Descriptor: 

Background Information: The County of Winnebago on behalf of the Winnebago County Sheriff’s 
Office has been awarded FY24 Law Enforcement Camera Grant – Fall, from the State of Illinois, Illinois 
Law Enforcement Training and Standards Board. The funding is reimbursement, specifically for in-car 
video, and officer-worn body cameras for law enforcement officers, data storage cost, and training for 
law enforcement officers in the operation of the cameras. 

Recommendation: Approve the agreement. 

Contract/Agreement:  Attached 

Legal Review:  Yes.  

Follow-Up:   n/a 

http://www.wincoil.gov/


County Board:  July 25, 2024 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:  Brad Lindmark, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 

2024 CR 

RESOLUTION ACCEPTING AWARD AND AUTHORIZING THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD 
CHAIRMAN TO EXECUTE FY24 LAW ENFORCEMENT CAMERA GRANT - FALL AGREEMENT 

 WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago on behalf of the Winnebago County Sheriff’s 
Office has been awarded FY24 Law Enforcement Camera Grant – Fall, from the State of Illinois, 
Illinois Law Enforcement Training and Standards Board; and 

WHEREAS, the funding is reimbursement, specifically for in-car video, and officer-worn 
body cameras for law enforcement officers, data storage cost, and training for law enforcement 
officers in the operation of the cameras; and 

WHEREAS, the Public Safety and Judiciary Committee of the County Board for the County 
of Winnebago, Illinois, has reviewed the Agreement, Resolution Exhibit A, and recommends 
accepting the award and approving the Agreement; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the Winnebago County Board Chairman is authorized to accept and execute, on 
behalf of the County of Winnebago, Illinois an Agreement with THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, ILLINOIS 
LAW ENFORCEMENT TRAINING AND STANDARDS BOARD, 500 S. 9TH STREET, SPRINGFIELD, 
ILLINOIS, 62701, in substantially the same form as that attached Resolution Exhibit A, in the 
amount of  FOUR HUNDRED THIRTY-TWO THOUSAND SIX HUNDRED TWENTY-THREE DOLLARS  
AND   ZERO  CENTS ($432,623.00).  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare 
and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Winnebago County Sheriff’s Office, County 
Board Office, Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives, Director of Purchasing, Finance 
Director, and County Auditor. 



 

                                                                         
 

      Respectfully Submitted, 
      PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 

 
AGREE  DISAGREE 

 

 

  

BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIR  BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIR 

 

AARON BOOKER  AARON BOOKER 

 

JEAN CROSBY 

 

 JEAN CROSBY 

 

ANGIE GORAL 

 

 ANGIE GORAL 

 

KEVIN MCCARTHY 

 

 KEVIN MCCARTHY 

 

TIM NABORS 

 

 TIM NABORS 

 

CHRIS SCROL  CHRIS SCROL 

 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2024. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 
 

 




































































	Agenda
	Approval of Minutes
	Debbie Jarvis, Director of Court Services - Resource Intervention Center Evening Programming: Discussion
	Resolution Authorizing the Winn. Cty. Board Chairman to Execute the First Amendment to Tower Site License Agreement
	Resolution Accepting Award & Authorizing the Winn. Cty. Board Chairman to Execute FY24 Law Enforcement Camera Grant - Fall Agreement



